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KEY PROJECTS

Plan/Initiate, Retain & Grow, Advocate & Inform

Through key initiatives andcorroborations, EDCWarren County
continued to move forward in2019 servingas the County's primary
andfull-imeadvocate for sustainable economic development.

EDCE very appreciativeofsupportfromWarren Countyand
municipalities throughout the County, investors from the business
community, other key stakeholders, our federal legslators; US
Senators Schumer, Gillibrand, & Congressperson Stefanik together
with state officials Governor Cuomo legislators ;Senator Little,
AssemblymanStec along with federal and state agencies .



PLAN & INITIATE

*Completionof PathwayCorridor study( funded in part by
EDC, Warren County and National Grid)-updated
traffic/pedestrian study Route 9, 149 exit 23 Corridor) has
led to the next phase of this project by examining potential funding
for proposed improvements alongthis major retailoutletsector.

*Planning and preparation by EDC of two federal opportunity
zone applications to Governor Cuomo for hisrecommendation
and subsequent approval bythe USDepartmentofTreasu ry's for
two Warren County communities to qualifyas federal opportunity
zones: Town ofJohnsburg-North Creek and the western portion
ofthe City of Glens Falls has led to advocacy by EDC in seeking
through strategic marketing plan/collaboration potential
investors, financial institutions and developers for these regions
within Warren County .

These two opportunity zones are designed to spur economic
development by providing certaintax benefits (capital tax gain
deferral to investors). Potential projects for North Creek &
Glens Falls include lodging, hotel, retail, mixed use projects,

affordable housingand other potential projects.



*Planning for greater access for affordable housing choiceshss
moved to a working group of northern Warren County communities
in preparation for data gathering and selection of consultant to
proceed with a market analysis. This process is a required step for
potential developers to be aware of this region with the preparation
of this feasibility study of affordable housing within Warren County.
Funding for this component is by EDC ($10,000) and Warren County
Planning {$10,000). EDC initiated this initiative by establishing a
forum with representative from NYS HousingCommunity Renewal
(NYS HCR) and community leaders from rural areas of the

County.

*EDC worked with the City of Glens Falls and housing developer in
undertaking a 71-unit affordable housing project(S15million) assisted by
New York State Homes and Community Renewal. Project is
expected to be completed late summer early fall 2020

*EDCcontinue to provide affordable housing opportunities for
residents of Glens Falls and Warren County as administrator of the
New York State funded firsttime home buyers program with
approximate funding for 15 recipients for acquiring their first home within
the County

*EDC supporting the efforts of the Glens Falls Housing Authority in
demolishing the existing 50 units of the Larose Gardens (built in 1967)
and construct new apartments on the site. The new apartments with
estimated cost $10 million to $12 million will be would be more energy
efficient.



*Planning for growth along the northern portion of interstate 87 exits
(Northway) within Warren County is critical for prospective
development in this rural area. The county’s progress is constrained by
the developmental restrictions of the Adirondack Park Agency
jurisdiction which encompasses ninety-four per cent of the land mass
within the County. EDC at their expense recognizing this restriction is
nearing completion of an “exit study” with focus on the northern areas
by identifying suitable developable properties through mapping, land
analysis and infrastructure issues.

*EDC following the preparation and submittal of funding application
on behalf of the City of Glens Falls for a Downtown Revitalization
Initiative (DRI) grant is now undertaking the administrative, oversight
of this S10M grant.

As aresultof Governor'sCuomo'sinnovative urban policies-Downtown
Revitalization (DRI)continues to see progress in the redevelopment
andcreation of a revitalized, re-energized South Streetwiththe private
repurposing rehabilitation of two existingbuildings, commencement ofa
new 10,000 SF"Market Square" homefor ayear n"larket,development
of new mixed use building, 400 vehicle parking garage, repurpose
establishment of Arts District and other programs .

Thefirst DRI project in the State was celebrated with the openingofthe
innovative SUNY AdirondackCulinary Institute at the $30M mixeduse
complex( includes 87 residential units on HudsonAvenue adjacent to
the Glens falls Hospital.



*Extensive planning and collaboration with the City of Glens Falls and
Town of Queensbury has led to considerable diversified economic
growth as result of improvement infrastructure-sewer extension along
Main Street/Exit 18 QueensburyGlensFallscorridorwhichis now
realizing significant development. At Exit18 this sewer extension is
enabling businesses and industrial areas to expand along the western
corridor from exit 18 including the redevelopment of the former recycling
center into manufacturing , acquisition of a former vacant (over 10 years)
116,000 SFformer Native Textile facility with new ownershi palongwith
new tenants; AngioDynamics-medical device and Sheet Labels company.
Other business located in thisareainclude recreational venues:
SkyZone,& Rocksport Rock Climbing Hudson Headwaters West Mountain
Health Center expansion, and purchase of vacant properties for expansion
for additional industries .

Further growth along this sector includes construction and operation
of the Holiday Inn, Fairfield Inn, expansion of Stewarts Shoppe including
Glens Falls National Bank branch.

At Exit 19(Queensbury) further growth is occurring with Hitton Home2Suites
operating along with the pending redeveloping/repurposing of the
Aviation Mall uses to include mixed use development that includes
residential apartment.



Retain and Growth

2019 was highlighted by significant news from the Medical Device

Cluster located in the Queensbury/Glens Falls region. This news

included:

e the sale of CR Bard (located on Bay Road in Queensbury) to Benton
Dickinson a $12 B revenue medical manufacturing company,

* AngioDynamics (located in Queensbury/Glens Falls) expanding their

manufacturing and distribution center operations,

Angiodynamics relocates 125 employees to Travelers Building

downtown Glens Falls with 8,000 sf renovations,

Acquisition of the former NAMIC division of Angiodynamics
By Medline (No 32 on the Forbes list of largest private held
companies (18,00 employees) in America with $10B total annual
company sales (location In Glens Falis),
Angiodynamics began focusing on new technology and products
including Nanoknife together with acquisition of Israeli based laser
startup company Eximo Medical. The technology behind the
Nanoknife does not rely on heat to achieve cell death. It uses a more
natural method that destroys only targeted tissue, sparing critical
structures including vessels, nerves and ducts. Currently
AngioDynamics, Inc., is in an FDA-approved clinical study that is
evaluating the effectiveness of IRE technology for the treatment of
stage lll pancreatic cancer



*Finch Paper LLC a key manufacturing anchor for this region
strategically acquired French Paper Company(maker of colored
paper) joining Finch’s Papers (premium maker of white paper.

*Flomatic located on Pruyn’s Island Glens Falls manufacturer of
diversified water valves & waste water valves celebrated their
19,000-square-foot expansion in 2019.The $3 million project with
increase in employment of 10- 15 jobs was partially funded by a
$660,000 grant from the Governor’s Regional Economic
Development Council. EDC was very pleased to have assist
Flomatic with this project from discussion stage to celebration of
the new 19,000SF expansion.

*ESD ongoing assistance in efforts to promote the former Web
Graphics building in Queensbury (approximately 90,000 SF)
has resulted in pending contract for purchase and EDC is now in
the process of working with Town Officials on the permitting
process along with assisting the new owner with their workforce
development

ADVOCATE & ADVOCATE
Lake George & Wastewater Treatment Plant

EDC in partnership with the Fund for Lake George supports efforts
for funding for the construction of a new wastewater treatment



plant for Lake George. EDC President Ed Bartholomew testified
before the Joint NYS Legislative Budget Committee February 2019
advocated for this funding in his testimony Bartholomew stated

“Failure to address this significant environmental concern will
result in a devastating environmental and economic calamity for
the Adirondacks and Warren County “

Further comments at the hearing came for Assemblyman Dan Stec
who said

“It’s not often that you have economic developers literally sitting
elbow —to-elbow with environmental leaders and they are in lock-
step on this and many other issues... This is an issue that everyone
across the entire spectrum recognizes is a crisis,”

EDC coordinated the visit of Senator Schumer to Lake George to
announce support for funding for this wastewater project.
Subsequently Senator Schumer and Congresswoman Stefanik
announce $500,000 funding for Lake George waste water
treatment plant from the Federal Border Commission.

In late 2019 /early 2020 Governor Cuomo announce nearly S10 M
in additional funding for the construction of the Lake George
wastewater treatment plant



In furtherance of support and advocacy for the sustainability of
Lake George , EDC was invited to join the FUND for lake George
Council of Business Advisors

*EDC supported the efforts to restore funding to the 2019 budget
for NYS Film Tax Credit-an important emerging economic tool for
this region led by Andrew Meader Adirondack Fil Commissioner

*EDC advocated for the Town of Horicon and Horicon Historic
Association funding request for restoration of the Union Church in
Adirondack NY which was secured by Senator Betty Little

*A prolonged effort by EDC and medical device industry ended
with a successful effort in the elimination of the 2.3% excise tax
which was imposed (2013) on the domestic sales of medical
devices to be paid by the device manufacturer. A bi partisan
effort (Senators Schumer, Gillibrand and Congresswoman
Stefanik) led Congress to the successful elimination

ADVOCACY CFA

EDCWarrenCountyassisted with a numberofWarren County public
and privatefundingapplicationsand support throughthe New York
State CFA process which resulted ina number of successful grant

anhouncements



There was a total of eleven (11) NYS Consolidated Funding
Application Round 9 awards for projects located in Warren County,
NY as part of the NYS Governor's 2019 Regional Economic
Development Council awards announced in December 2019. These
eleven projects consisted of a variety of public infrastructure
projects as well as one business expansion project. EDC participated
in several ways on these projects. Specifically, on the business
expansion project EDC worked directly with the business which is
known as Nettle Meadows which makes a variety of hand crafted
artisan cheese products and distributes them regionally and
increasingly nationally. Nettles Meadows has won several awards

for their products

Nettle Meadows plan to use the awarded grant monies to assist in
the acquisition and renovation of a separate existing property to
accommodate capacity, add new equipment and utilize heavier
utilities required to operate the facility.EDC's role in this CFA was as
an advisor, helping with facilitating discussions with state officials
and assisting with answering questions regarding the application.
Nettle Meadow was awarded $120,000 and continues to assist the
business with follow up and compliance components of the award
on an ongoing basis until the project is fully completed sometime in
late 2020. Additionally, EDC as administrator of the Warren County
Local Development Corporation assisted in

10



Inthe City of Glens Falls, NY there were two CFA projects awarded in
2019, one for an engineering study to address the city's inflow and
infiltration alternatives under consideration for sanitary sewer.
Award totaled $100,000. The other award is for the construction of
a separate storm sewer system ina portion of the city which will
help reduce the occurrence of overflows during heavy rain and
storms. Total awarded in the latter project is $1,048,000. EDC acted
as an active advisor/supporter by assisting answering questions
regarding application and by advocating to Capital Region Economic
Development Council on behalf of the City of Glens Falls.

EDC acted as a supporter of individual engineering studies for
infrastructure projects in three Warren County Town of Chester,
Hague, and the Town of Lake George mostly relatingto wastewater
issues in each town. Collectively, the total of the four projects in
three towns totals$135,000.

Lastly, there were four projects awarded that were organized and
submitted by the Warren County Soil and Conservation District
relating to engineering studies and feasibility in several towns in
Warren County concerning culverts that can reduce streambank

erosion. The total awarded amounts for these totaled $140,318

11



INFORM
EDC conducts a series of events throughout the year

*Annual Forecast Breakfast in January 31 speakers Kenneth Entenmann
senior Vice President NBT and Heather Briccetti, President CEO

Business Council

*Annual Luncheon (May 30) featured speakers Ross Levy Executive
Director Tourism | Love NY Director, Rebecca Wood President Six
Flags Great Escape

*EDC Co-sponsor with Albany Business Review “Invest in Glens
Falls”{Nov 12)

*Annual Holiday Party (benefit Big Brothers Big Sisters )(Dec 4)

*Yearly Visit by Lt Gov Hochul to Glens Falls Warren County (March 19)
*Affordable Housing Roundtable with state and local officials (March 6)
EDC Hosts CFA Information Session (June 10)

*ON the ROAD

EDC testifies at Joint Legislative Budget Committee on Economic
Development in Albany (February 12)

EDC joins area local leaders in Washington Dc for meetings with federal
representatives (March 5)

12



*Tours with ESD officials Glens Falls Queensbury and North Country
(march 29) & North Creek ORDA and local officials (march 10)

*EDC coordinates Senator Schumer to Lake George (April 16)

*EDC host US EDA Economic Development Administration site visit to
Tech Meadows (June 10)

*EDC Attends announcement by Gov Cuomo at Albany Airport (July 8)
*EDC attends recognition remembrance ceremony for Mary Lou
Whitney by Gov Cuomo) (August)

*Site Visit Horicon Adirondack Day (August 10)

*EDC speaking at 200 Bicentennial Canal Corp Workforce Forum
(Oct 30)

*EDC Participants at SUNY Adirondack Microenterprise with Washington
County Local Development Corporation (Nov 12)

*EDC visits Kingsbury to meet with Senator Schumer regarding medical
device excise tax elimination and other legislative matters(Dec 23)

13






2019 EDC Real Property Report

EDC ownership of real property is attached herein;

EDC did not dispose or acquire any real property in 2019



EDC Owned Property

As of 12/31/2019
Address Yax Map ¢ Lot Skke
139 Warren St. Glens Falls 303.17-24-4 09x204
33 Stone Quarry Rd. Lot 4 Queensbury 303.12-1-9.5 3.8 acres
Queensbury Business Park 303.16-1-78 11.53 acres
Quaensbury Business Park 303.16-1-77 3.63 acres
Queensbury Business Park 303.16-1-76 2.63 acres

Dix Ave. Queensbury 303.15-1-36.1 1.31 acres






Policy No. 5

CODE OF ETHICS
OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

The members of the board (the ‘“Board”) of the Economic Development
Corporation (the “Corporation”), a duly established local development corporation created
pursuant to Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York (the
“State”), along with the officers and staff of the Corporation, shall comply with and adhere to the
provisions of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law of the State.

Further, no director, officer, or employee of the Corporation shall (1) accept other
employment which will- impair his or her independence of judgment in the exercise of his or her
official duties; (2) accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity which
will require him or her to disclose confidential information which he or she has gained by reason
of his or her official position of authority; (3) disclose confidential information acquired by him
or her in the course of his or her official duties nor use such information to further his or her
personal interests; (4) use or attempt to use his or her official position to secure unwarranted
privileges or exemptions for himself, herself or others; (5) engage in any transaction as a
representative or agent of Corporation with any business entity in which he or she has a direct or
indirect financial interest that might reasonably tend to conflict with proper discharge of his or her
official duties; (6) by his or her conduct, give reasonable basis for the impression that any person
can improperly influence him or her or unduly enjoy his or her favor in the performance of his or
her official duties, or that he or she is affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any
party or person; (7) make personal investments in enterprises which he or she has reason to believe
may be directly involved in decisions to be made by him or her or which will otherwise create
substantial conflict between his or her duty in the public interest and his or her private interest; and
(8) pursue a course of conduct which will raise suspicion among the public that he or she is likely
to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her trust.

Approved and adopted this 25" day of February 2014
Amended and Reaffirmed March 20, 2018
Reaffirmed March 17, 2020






EDC WARREN COUNTY
Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls Policy

New Policy Adopted No.17 March 20, 2020

1. BACKGROUND:

Section 2800(1) (a) (9) and Section 2800(2) (a) (8) of Public Authorities Law and pursuant to NYS Public
Authority Office recommended practice require all public authorities to complete an annual assessment of
the effectiveness of their internal control structures and procedures,

2. INTENT:

The purpose of the EDC Warren County (EDC) system of internal control shall be to:

a) Promote effective and efficient operations so as to help the EDC in carrying out its mission.

b) Provide reasonable assurance that the EDC’s assets are safeguarded against inappropriate or unauthorized
use. -

) Promotetheaccmacyandreﬁabiﬁtyofaccolmﬁngdataandﬂnancialrepmﬁngto ensure that transactions
are executed in accordance with the EDC Board’s authorization and that they are recorded properly in
accounting records.

d) Encourage adherence to the EDC Board’s policies and procedures for conducting programs and
operations.

€) Ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

This system of internal control includes performing an annual assessment to identify potential weaknesses in
policies or procedures and to implement corrective actions,

This assessment shall identify significant weaknesses in controls, recognize emerging or inherent rigks, and
enable early detection of existing or potential problems. If an internal control system is working effectively,
the EDC Board will have a reasonable indication of the reliability of its operating practices and the accuracy
of the information it uses to measure its activities and performance. Any deficiencies identified as a result of
the assessment shall be addressed by the EDC Board.

3. EDC’S INTERNAL CONTROLS ASSESSMENT PLAN:

A. Define the EDC’s Primary Functions:

1. Annually review the mission of the EDC and verify that its primary operating responsibilities, opetations
and functions will help fulfill its mission.

2. Annually evaluate the EDC’s written mission statement to ensure that jt clearly defines the EDC’s
purpose.

3. Define the EDC’s objectives and ensure they are understood by EDC staff.

4. Review policies, procedures and guidelines to ensure that they guide EDC staff in the operations of the
EDC and provide methods and procedures to assess the effectiveness of those functions.



B. Determine Risks:

1. Assess the internal and external risk exposure and associated vulnerability of each function of the EDC
and assign a corresponding risk level (i.e., high, medium, or low).

2. If a risk is identified, the EDC Board shall determine how to best handle it by evaluating its significance,
likelihood, and because

3.Based on the assigned risk levels, the EDC Board shall determine how frequently it will review the
controls in place for each function.

C. Review Existing Internal Control Systems in Place:
1. The EDC Board and staff shall annuslly review and examine the policies and practices in place to ensure
that those policies and practices are effective in addressing the risks that are relevant to the operation.

D. Assess the Extent to Which the Internal Control System is Effective:

1. The assessment of internal controls should be a structured and monitored process to identify and to
report any weaknesses of the internal control structure to the EDC Board.

2. This process should determine if the existing control structure and procedures are adequate, to mitigate
rigk, minimize ineffectiveness and deter opportunities that could lead to the misappropriation of assets.

3. The assessment should provide the EDC Board with information as to whether the EDC’s policies and
operating practices were understood and were executed properly, and whether they are adequate to
protect the organization from waste, abuse, misconduct, or inefficiency.

4. This assessment shall be completed through a combination of inquiry and observation, a review of
documents and records and by replicating transactions to test the sufficiency of the control system.

E. Take Corrective Action:
1. When a weakness is identified, a corrective action plan should be developed, adopted by the EDC Board
and then monitored by the EDC Board to ensure that the weakness is addressed.

4. INTERNAL CONTROL CERTIFICATION:

A. Section 2800(2) (a) (8) of the Public Authorities Law:

1. To satisfy the requirement of Section 2800(2) (a) (8) of Public Authorities Law, the EDC shall
incorporate, either within its annual report or as a separate document, a statement explaining that the
authority has conducted a formal, documented process to assess the effectiveness of its internal control
structure and procedures, and indicate whether or not the internal controls are adequate.

2. This statement should eventually be posted to the EDC’s website.

3. The statement shall state the following or equivalent:

The EDC Board of Directors will document and assess the EDC Warren County Internal Financial
Control System for EDC'’s calendar year ending December 31,of each year and shall undertake
determination as part of annual reporting requirements to NYS Authority Budget Office as to
adequacy of the Corporation'’s internal controls- (i.e. adeguate. No deficiencies or note
deficiencies/with recommendations for corrective action.

4. The EDC shall retain documentation to support the assessment of its internal controls,

5. If the EDC finds any deficiencies with the internal controls over its functions or operations, additional
documentation should be maintained to demonstrate that the EDC has adopted corrective action plans to
address these weaknesses.



6. This documentation should be made available upon request to the EDC’s independent auditor or to ABO
compliance review staff,

B. Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS):

1. AspmtofthePARISAnnualReporttaB,theEDCwillberequiredtoindicatewhetherornotithas
preparedtbisassessmentandwﬂlprovidetheURLlinktothestatement,ifavailable.

Adopted March 20, 2020



/5 MARVIN
AND COMPANY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERMAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDAMCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

mmmmmmmmmmmmmundmma
mmmommhnmm contalrad in Govenment Auditing Siandards,
mwhmmahwm.hmmmaum
which comprise the statsment of financial posltion

nonprofit organtzation)
-umm.mmmmmmmdmmwommmmm

eniity’s
basle. A aignioant ba » O & oombination of deficisncica, In intemal ool
Mhumhn lmmmdmy:'whwmhbmm by thows charged

with govemanoe,

deflolencles in Infermal control that we consider to be material wealmeszes. However,
weaknisasos may uxist that have not been identified.

-Iw Muekips waller Abrrobier 11 BeRich Amarican Blvd. Latham, New York 12110.1408 i ASIGTARNM | R:S10705-0000 “llll‘-g.nq-un

of the AP Alhpie T84 121 Bverts. Ave. Cuamensbery: NY 12008 | 5187524398 | Emasaons



INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT STATEMENT

March 20, 2020

This statement certifies that the EDC Board of Directors has documented and assessed the
internal control structure and procedures of the EDC Warren County for the year ending
December 31, 2019 at its meeting of March 20, 2020.

This assessment found the EDCs internal controls and procedures to be adequate.

No deficiencies were found.



10, Certificates of Incorporations for EDC Warren County



N. Y. S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS AND STATE RECORDS ALBANY, NY 12231-0001
FILING RECEIPT
E---======II====----======H-.----==-=-=l===.=-=-===-=-=B==-===a==--=====ﬂﬂﬂ--EE

NIITY NAME: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

DOCUMENT TYPE: AMENDMENT (DOMESTIC NFP) COUNTY: WARR
PROCESS NAME
SERVICE COMPANY: *+ NO SERVICE COMPANY #*+ SERVICE CODE: 00

FILED:05/24/2006 DURATION: *%*#teksn CASH#:060524001299 FILM #:060524001187

ADDRESS FOR PROCESS

THE CORPORATION
2434 GLEN STREET
GLENS FALLS, NY 12801

REGISTERED AGENT

FILER FEES 55.00 PAYMENTS 55.00
FILING 30.00 CASH 0.00

TAX 0.00 CHECK 55.00

ARTLETT PONTIFF STEWART & RHODES CERT 0.00 CHARGE 0.00

ATTN: BRUCE O. LIPINSKI, ESQ COPIES 0.00 DRAWDOWN 0.00
PO BOX 2168, 1 WASHINGTON ST HANDLING 25.00 OPAL 0.00
GLENS FALLS, NY 12801 REFUND 0.00

DOS-1025 (11/89)



New York State

Department of State
Division af Corporstions, State Records
ind Uniform Commercis! Code
41 State Street
Albany, NY 12231
worw.dos.setaie.ny.m

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

Warren County Economie Development Corporation
(Insert Nams of Domestic Corparation)

Under Section 803 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law

FIRST: The name of the corporation is:._Varrep County Economic Development

Coxrporation .
If the name of the corporation has been chenged, the name under which it was formed is: Marren

Washington Regional Economi¢c Development Corporation
SECOND: The date of filing of the certificats of incorporation with the Department of State is:
Novenhar 19, 1992

THIRD: The law the corporation was formed under is; _the Not—for-Profit Corporation Law of
the State of New York/

FOURTH: The corporation is a corporation as defined in Section 102(e)(5) of the Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law. The corporationisa Type__C ___ corporstion.

FIFTH: The emendment effected by this certificate of emendment is as follows: (Set forth each
amendment in e scparate paragraph providing the subject matter snd full text of each mdedpmmph.hrmmple..m

smendment changing the narae of the corporetion would read as follows: “Paragraph Firstof the Certificate of Incarporation relating
to the corporais name i herelsy amended to read in ity entirety as follows: Firat: The name of the corporation is ... (rew namy) ... )

Paragraph  FIRST __ of the Certificate of Incorporation relating fo_the corporate _
name of the corperation .

=

is hereby [check the appropriate box(es)] Oadded to read in its entirety as follows or K amended

to read in its entirety as follows: _FIRST: THe name of the~corporation is
—Economic Devwelnpment Carporatiom.

DOS-1563 (Rav. 12/04)



SIXTH: The Secretary of State is designated as agent of the corporation upon whom process
against it mey be served. The address to which the Secretary of State shall forward copies of process
accepted on behalf of the corporation is: 801

SEVENTH: The certificate of amendment was authorized by [Check the appropriate box]
O The amendment was authorized by & vote of a mejority of the members at a meeting.
0O The amendment was authorized by the unanimous written consent of the members entitled

to vote thereon.
[ The amendment was authorized by 2 vote of a majority of the entire board of directars. The
corporation has no members.

M Leonard Fosbrook, President
——= " "J700R, fresldent
(Signature) (Name and Title of Signer)




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

Warren County Ec c Devel t Corporation
T N e Gy elotment Corpozatd

Under Section 803 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law

Filr'sName ____Bartlett, Pontiff, Stewart & Bhodes, P.C., Attn; Bruge 0, Lipinskt, Esq.

Addregs_ E+0. Box 2168, 1 Washington Streat

City, State and Zip Code _Gl€na Falls, New York 12801

Nom:ﬁkfbrmwuprq:mdbytherYmksuuDepammofShta. Itdounoteonhinnllopﬁnm]pmvisions
under the law, You are aot required to uge this form, Youmuydnftmmformormforpl evajlable at legal

Please be sure t.n review Section 804 and Section 404 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law to determine if any
cohsents or approvals are required to be sttached to this certificate of amendment, The certificate must be
submitted with & $30 filing foe,

For Gffice Use Only



N. Y. S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS ALBANY, NY 12231-0001

FILING RECEIPT

ENTITY NAME : ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

DOCUMENT TYPE : ASSUMED NAME CERTIFICATE

SERVICE COMPANY +++ NO SERVICE COMPANY 444 CODE:
n===-===n-----=================----------=-============;=-=---------====n======
FILED: 06/23/2006 CASHfi: 162147 FILM#: 20060623052

PRINCIPAL LOCATION

234 GLEN STREET

GLENS FALLS
NY 12801

EDC WARREN COUNTY, NY

* FERS 85.00 PAYMENTS: 85.00
¥ e T
* FILING ; 25.00 cCasn :
* COUNTY 25.00 CHECK 85.00
* COPIES : 10.00 C CaARD :
* MISC : . 00
* HANDLE : 25,00
* ' REFUND:
=
L ] } ] ===B.--==-==-===.=-===.-.=-----=====’=======-.--------=-==============-.--=-

ARTLETT PONTIFF STEWART & RHODES PC
S8RUCE O LIPINSKI ESQ

ONE WASHINGTON ST PO BOX 2168

GLENS FALLS NY 12801

s ETaEE e Lt b ot F T T e 0 K B ) I O =-='=-=========.='==----======-===---

DO3HD104 DOS-281 (8/98)



NYS Dapartment of Siats
Division of c::lg;r':ﬂom. Sinte Records and UCC

Certificate of Assumed Name 41 State Street, Albany, NY 12231-0001
WWw.dos.ststa.ny.us

Pursuant fo General Business Law, 5130
1. NAME OF ENTITY

Economic Development Corporation
1a. FOREIGN ENTITIES ONLY. If apploatis, tw Rclifous nams the ently agread 1o usa 1n New York Biste I

2 NEWYORKLAWFOHHDRMHORB!DUNDER(GHWDNE):

O Business Corporation Law O Umited Lisbliity Company Law
O Education Law B Notor-Profit Corparation Law
O insurance Law O Revised Limited Partnership Azt

] Other (epecify law);
3. ASSUMED NAME
EDC Warren County, NY
4 mmuruceoraummmmmammwusraemuﬂmm.rmmwr—w-mnm:

234 Glen Street, Glens PFalls, New York 12801
—-—-——l—.________i

8. COUNTIES IN WHIGH BUSINESS WL BE CONDUCTED UNDER ASSUMED NAVE
] ALL COUNTIES (if not, cirdle county[jes] balow)

Albeny Clinton Genesge Monos Orlears Ssruioga Tompidrs
Aleguny Columhbla Gresne Montgomery Oswego Schenaciady Ulsiar
Bronx Cortiand Hamilion Nasgau . Otsago Schoharis Warren
Brooma Delmware Haridmer New York Putnam Schuylar i
Caflaraugus Dutchess Jeffarson Ningara Quesns Sensca - Wayre
Cayuga Erle Kinga Onaldn Ranszelser Stauben Wesichesr
Cheulauqua Essmx Lowls Onondaga Richmond Suffolk Wyoming
Chemung Frankdin Livingsion Ontarlo Rooldand Suilivan Yaies
Chenango Fulton Madison Orsnge 8L Lawrence Toga

8. INSERT THE ADDREBS OF EACH mmmmawmsmscmmmmmammmmmumm
ot fonih hhm-dlmmhlrmdmdy sizie and 2ip cotls. Pisswe nols that ng

m-.(-)mnnpmar-pumuumunmummhmpnaum-mwimmm.mumm1m

] No New Yok State Business Location

—— 234 Glen Strest

Glens Falls, NY 12801

DOS-1338 (Rev. 5/03)



INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNATURE: I corporation, by an officer; if Emiied parinership, by a general partnar; If imited Nabiiity
comparny, by & member cr manager or by an sttomey-n-fact or authorlzed person for such corporation, fimited partnership, or

limited lablity company,

" CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME
OF

.Economic Development Corporation

(nsert Entlty Nome)

-

FILER'S NAME AND MAZING ADDRESS

Bartlet:, Pontiff, Stewart & Rhodes, P.C., Bruce 0. Lipingki, Eaq.

One Waskington Street, P.0. Box 2168
Glens Falls, New York 12801

NOTE: This form was prepared by the New York State Depariment of State. Youars not reguired to use this form, You

may draft your own form or use forma avallabie at logai staticnery storea. The Department of State recommends that all

documents be prepared under the guidance of an atiomey. The certificate must be submitied with a $25 fea. The

Dapartment of State slsa collacts the following, addtional, county clark faes for each county Inwhich e corporetion does

or transacts business: $100 for each county within New York Cly (Bronx, Kings, New York, Queens and Richmond) and
cortified,

foraad:mmnyNawYork A.'Ioveswomustbe

(For Cffica Use Only)




CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
)

WARREN WASHINGTON REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Under Section 402 of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law

We, the undersigned, for the PRrpose of forming a local
developnent corporaticn, do hersby cartity:

t__The name of tha corporation shall be.tha WARREN

FIRST
WABHINGTON REGIONAL ECONONIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION.

SECOND: The corporation is a corporation as defined in
Subparagraph (a)(5) of SBection 103 of the Not-For-profit
Corporation Law and is a local devalopment corporation pursuant
to Section 1411 of said law.

THIRD: The purposes for which the corporation is formed are
as follows:

a.

. -

da.

£.

To plan and promots, and if necessary to coordinate and
executs programs in the Counties of Warren and
Washington aimed at improving the quality of 1ifa of
its residents by developing new approaches and methods
vhere necessary and propar,

To plan and promote, mlulivoli charitable or public
purposes of relisv and rsduo ng adult unemployment,
promoting and previa for additional and maximm

adult employmant

Bettering and naintainlnin:dult Job opportunities,
instructing or training ividuals to inmprovae or
develop their capabilities for such Jobs.

or by the development of, or retenticn of,
such industry or agribusinass in the said communities
or areas,

Inuan.'l.nqthebuﬁmofgowmmtandacl: in the
public intarest, ing

To ide managerial, technical and administrative
advgo- in order to aid local business entarprises.

In furtherance of the aforesaid purposes, the corporation
shall have all the powers conferred by paragraph (c) of
section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation taw.
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The corporation may do any other act or thing incidental to
or connected with the forsgoing purposes or in advancement
thereof, but not for the pacuniary profit or £inancial gain
of its members, directors or officers ¢ * 8xcapt as permitted
under Articles 5 and 14 of the Not-for-?rotit Corporation
Law and Article 8 of tha Public Authoritiesg law.

Nothing herein contained shall authorize or enpower the
corporation, directly or indirasctly, to angage in or include
among its purposes any activity prohibited by New York
General Business Law section 340 or any other New York anti-
monopoly law, and the corporation is not authorized seo to

engage.

FOURTH: Notwithatanding any other provisions of these
articles, the Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable
or educational purposes, as specified in Secticn 8501(c) (3) of the
Internal Revenue Cods of 1586, and shall not carry on any
activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt
from Fedsral income tax under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal

Revenue Code of 1586.

FIFTH: Nothing herein shall authorise the corpoxation,

directly or indirectly, to engage in or include anong its
purposes any of the activities mentioned in Section 404 (b)

through (u) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law.

s:l:x'fna :nliﬂtantiu p::'t of tg;' activities of the
Corporation sha devotasd carry. on propaganda, or
otherwvisa attempting to influence legislation, (except to the
extent authorized by Internal Revenus Code Ssction 501 (hi as
anended, or the corresponding provision of any futurs United
State internal revenue law, during any fiscal year or years in
vhich the Corporation has chosen to utilize the benafits
authorized by the statutory provision ) and the Corporation shall
not participate in or intervene {including the publishing or
distributing of statements) in any political campaign on bshalf
of any candidate for public offics.

S8EVENTH: The corporation-shall be a Type C corporation
under Section 201 of the Not-for-Profit corporat:l.onm?aw.

EIGHTH: The lawful public or quasi-public objectives vhich
each business purposs will achieve ars the following: the
training of community residents in the developmant of their
business skills; the reduction of adult unempl ? the
promotion of maximum adult onplannt by battar and
maintaining adult job opportunities) the stimulation of the
econanic growth of the communities.

NINTH: All income and earnings of such corporation shall ba
used exclusively for its corporatas pu:.-ion- or accrue and be paid
to the New York Job Development Authority.

TENTH: No part of the income or sarmings of such
corporation shall inure to the benefit or profit of, nor shall
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any distribution of its property or asgsets be mads to any member
or privats person, corporats, or individual, or any other privats
interest, axcept that the corporation is hereby authorizsd
pursuant to section 1411 (s)(2) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation
Law to repay loans and to repay contributions (other than dues)
to the corporation, but only if and to the extent that any such
contribution may not be allowabls as a deduction in computing
taxable incoms under the Internal Revenus Code of 21986,

ELEVENTH: If the cerporation accepts a mortgaga loan from
the New York Job Development Authority, the corporation shall be
dissolved in accordance with the provision of section 1411({g) of
the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law upon the repaynent or other
discharge in full by the Corporation of all such locans.

TWELFTH: The office of the corporation shall bs located in
the City of Glens Falls, County of Warren, Stite of New York.

THIRTEENTH: The names and addresses of the initial
directors until the first annual meeting, each of whom is of full
age, are as follows:

NAME ADDRESS
Victor Grant Scofield Road )
Lake Luzerne, NY 12846&
Herbexrt A. Helneman, Jr. Hayflower Lane
Kattskill Bay, NY 12844
Bdward Dienst 16 Stone Pins Lane
Queensbury, NY 12804
Geocxrge Gress 40 Honey Hollow Road
Quesansbury, NY 12804
Robert Corxrigan ‘221 Main Strest
Hudson Falls, NY 12839
Richarad Skelliae " East Greenwich, New York 12834
David Wilmont, 8r. RD 1
Buskirk, NY 12028
Richard Freed 4 Rogers Avanue
Granville, ‘N¥ 12833
Michel Brant Stonebridge Road
Queenabury, NY 12804
Francis 0'Kesfe 32 Harrison Avenus
_ Glens Falls, XY 12801
George Frost 25 McHugh Streat

So. Glens Falls, KY 12803

-_— mr & ATy v meraes * umram
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FOURTEENTH: Upon ths dissolution of the coxrporation, neo
manber or private psrsons, corperate or individual, or other
private interest, shall be entitled to any distribution oy
division of its remaining funds and other Proparty and rights and
interests in Propexty, and the balance thereof, aftar the paynent
of all debts and liabilities of tha corporation of whatscever
kind and nature, (including the payment of loans and
contributions the repayment of which has been authorized in its
cartifioate of incorparation or rc.l.neorpontion) shall be
distributed to one or nors counties, cities, towns or villages

oparations are principally to be conducted, for furtharance of
the purposes sat forth hezein, or to the New York Job development
authoxity, as shall be provided by said corporation or by order
of the supreme court of the State of New York pursuant to saction
1008 (Jurisdiction of Suprena court to supervise dissolution and
liquidatien).

FIFTEENTH: The Saecretary of State of the State of New York
is hereby designated tha agent of the corporation upon whom
process against it mpay be sarved. The post office address to
which the Secretary of Stata shail mail a copy of any process
against the corporation sarved upon him/her as agent of the
corporation iz 136 warren Btreet, Glens ralls, New York 12801.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, We, tha undersigned incorporators, being
all at least eightesn years /of age, have mads, subscribed this
caertificate and h = it as true v ' the penaltieg of

/

perjury this J3'% day of Qbtobar. ass

3 3
'..‘.A’ ‘."Jl o Y
| ’

kL., LILncoppdratl

“;11 Bay/ NY )i

G orator
dNon Palls, XY 12839




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
WARREN WASHINGTON REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Under Section 803 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law

cﬁrﬂneabofAmandmmtafmacarﬁﬁqataqfhmporaﬂonofWAHHEN
WASHINGTON REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION undser Section
803 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law,

- _FIRST: The nama of the corporation is WARREN WASHINGTON REGIONAL
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION. ]

SECOND: Thedahofﬂ&uha&rﬂﬂutaoﬂncorpmﬂonlnmaomeofh
Secretery of Stats of New York, Is Novembar 18, 1882,

THIRD: mmnbaeorpnrﬂonudcﬁmdh&bpamgmph (a)(5) of
SoclonwzofﬂmNot-ior-ProﬂtCorporaﬂon_l.awandh alocal development corporefion
pursuant to Section 1411 of sald law. It Is a Typa C corporstion as defined In N-PCL
Saction 201; the corporate purposes Wil be modifled slightly by this amendment, but the
Type of corporation It shall be will not change. '

FOURTH: The cerfificata of Incorporation Is amended to change the nama of the
corporaiion. Paragraph FIRST of the oerilficate of Incorporation is amended to read as

R

FIRST: The name of the-corporation Is the WARREN COUNTY REGIONAL
.ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORP..

FIFTH: The carfiicate of inoorporation s amendsd to modly the corporate
Puposes. Paragraph THIRD, sub-paragraphs a) and d) are amended as follows:

a Tophnmdpmmoh.andﬂmaeswytoeuordkmhaﬁdmmtaproma
InﬂngrtatarWarranomlymglonalmedulhnpro\dngﬂmqmﬂyoﬂfo
of Its residents by developing new approaches and methods where
necesaary and proper.

d. mlylngonuderMomemmmepumanofaldlngmegeramn
Comlyragtonbyathcﬂngmwhduslryandagﬂbudnmtosald
communities or areas or by encouraging the developmant of, or retention
of, such industry or agribusiness In the said communities or areas.



SIXTH: The certificate of incorporafion Is amanded to changs the post-ofiice
addmuﬁMﬁaSeMryofMahﬂmaﬂacopyofpm. Paragraph

HFI'EEhnHofmacarﬂﬂuho[lnoﬂporaﬂonhamendadbmadaafolowa:

FIFTEENTH: TheSea'eba:yofStnhofhsuhofNquodclshmbydeslgmd
ﬂiaagantofmeoomoraﬂonuponwhompmcaawnmaybeumd. The
ponoﬁcaaddmuhwhlohﬁengyof&abuhanmalacopyofw
pmcacagalnuﬂ\aeomomﬂonamduponhmﬂungemdmeoomomuon
lsAponoDﬁva.aasQuakerHoad,Queambury.NHm

5 !;wmssswumsos,mmmnuuwammmg‘aym

1995,
. ) . %3 E&J
Chiis A. Hunsinger, Preside eorge Frost, Secretary
STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF WARREN ;
Chris A, Hunsinger, baing duly sworn, deposas and says that he Is one of the
persons described In and who executed the cerfificate, that ha has read the



1

STATE OF NEW YORX

COUNTY OF ALBANY
In accordance with the provisions of section 804 of the
Not-for-Profit corporation Iaw, consant is hereby given to the
changs 1'?1 "hama of WARRENW nsnmmn REGIONAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORFORATION to WARREN couimy REGIONAL HCONOMIC
DEVELOFMENT "'CORP. anH purposes, contained in the annexed
certificate of amendment to the certificate of incorporation.
This consent to filing, however, shall not be construed
28 approval by the Board of Regents, the Commissioner of
Education or the State Bducaticn Dspartment of the purposes or
cbjects of such corperation, nor shall it be c':anstru.a as giving

‘the officers or agents of such corporatfon tha right tq use the

name of the Board of Regents, tha Commissionay of Bducation, the

:‘qnivmity of "the State of New York or the state Education
Department in its publications or fdvertising matter.

' This consant to Tiling is granted with the understandings

* and upon the conditiond set forth on the reverse side of this

+ 8xecuted and the sasl of the Stats
Education Departmént ig affixed this

25th day of Septembar,' 1595,

Richard ». wills
Commissioner of Education

By: ¥ 7 d."
Richard 1. Nabozny
Senior Attorney

Sm
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EDC Vision

EDC is the central source for Warren County economic development efforts, as it guides programs
and projects throughout the southemn Adirondack region. EDC achleves results through
collaborative public-private partnerships designed to encourage new investment opportunities that
create jobs.



EDC Organizational Chart
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CHAIR

Mait Fuller
Atiomsy, Meyer & Fuller
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Chrls Barden
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BECRETARY

Judy Calogero
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TREASURER
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Michaa! Pratt
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Alexander Rotoln

Chief Financla] Offcer
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Jim Siplon

Chief Operating Offioer
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Supervisor, Town of Horloon
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EDC WARREN COUNTY

AMENDED AND RESTATED

BY LAWS

As amended and re affirmed as of March 20, 2020



BY-LAWS
OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

ARTICLE I - THE CORPORATION

SECTION 1. - NAME.

The name of the Corporation is “ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION”
(hereinafter, the “Corporation™), as established pursuant to a Certificate of Incorporation filed on
November 19, 1992, as amended pursuant to Certificates of Amendment filed on October 27,
1995, October 23, 2001 and May 24, 2006 (collectively, the “Certificate of Incorporation”, as
may be amended).

SECTION 2. - OFFICES.

Pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation, the principal office of the Corporation shall
be located in the City of Glens Falls, County of Warren, New York (the “County™).

SECTION 3. - PURPOSES.

The Corporation shall have such purposes as are now or hereafter set forth in the Certificate
of Incorporation,

ARTICLE 11 - MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. - COMPOSITION OF MEMBERSHIP.

The Members of the Corporation shall be those individuals appointed by the duly
established Members of the Corporation from time to time, with the exception of four permanent
members. The four permanent members of the Corporation may serve without tendering a
membership fee and shall consist of (i) the County of Warren acting by and through its Chairman
of the Board of Supervisors, (ii) the Town of Queensbury acting by and through its Supervisor,
(iif) the City of Glans Falls acting by and through its Mayor and (iv) SUNY Adirondack acting
by and through its President. The Corporation shall have two (2) classes of Members consisting
of: (A) Voting Members and (B) Non-Voting Members. The Voting Members shall be the
Members of the Corporation that have been elected to and serving on the Board of Directors
pursuant to Articie [T hereof. The Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors in
accordance with the provisions contained herein.



SECTION 2. - RIGHTS AND POWERS OF THE MEMBERS.

The Members shall have and exercise all the rights and powers of corporate membership
created by the laws of the State of New York, the Certificate of Incorporation and the By-Laws
of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. - ANNUAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

The annual meeting of the Members of the Corporation shall be held at the same time and
place as the annual meeting of the Board of Directors as may be designated by the Board of
Directors and specified in the notice of such meeting. At the annual meeting, the Voting Members
shall appoint Directors pursuant to Article IIT hereof for positions where a new directorship is
created or the term of a Director has expired, receive the annual report and transact such
other business as may properly come before the meeting.

SECTION 4. - ANNUAL REPORT TO THE MEMBERS.

At the annual meeting of the Members, the Directors or designated officer of the
Corporation shall present an annual report showing in appropriate detail the following
information:

(@ A complete audited financial statement of the Corporation for the fiscal year
immediately preceding the date of the report showing the assets and liabilities, principal changes
in assets and liabilities, revenue, receipts, expenses and disbursements of the Corporation; and

(b) A summary of the activities of the Corporation during the preceding year.
The annual report shall be filed with the minutes of the annual meeting.
SECTION 5. - SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS,

Special meetings of the Members or Voting Members may be called at any time by (i)
authorization of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or (ii) written consent of a majority of
the Members of the Corporation or in the case of a special meeting of the Voting Members,
written consent of a majority of the Voting Members of the Corporation. Such request shall state
the purpose or purposes for the proposed meeting. Business transacted at a special meeting shall
be confined to the purposes stated in the notice of such special meeting; provided, however, if by
unanimous consent of the Members present at such meeting elect to transact business not
previously described in the aforementioned notice, then the Members may transact such other
business.

SECTION 6. - PLACE OF MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION
All membership meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at

such other convenient iocation as may be determined by the Members, except for the Annual
Meeting of the Members as set forth in Section 3 of this Article I. At each membership



meeting, the Members shall select, by a vote of the Voting Members, a representative chairman
of the Members to preside. The Secretary, or, in his or her absence, a person chosen by the
Voting Members, shall keep complete and accurate minutes of the meeting.

SECTION 7. - NOTICE OF MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS; WAIVERS

(@  Notice of each membership meeting shall state the purpose or purposes for which
the meeting is called, the place, date and time of the meeting and, unless it is the annual meeting,
shall indicate that it is being issued by or at the direction of the person or persons calling the
meeting. Such notice shall be given either personally or by mail and electronic mail to each of
the Members not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting.
If mailed, the notice is given when deposited in the United States mail, with postage thereon
prepaid, directed to each Member at his or her address as it appears on the record of the
Corporation or, if he or she shall have filed with the Secretary a written request that notices be
mailed to some other address, then directed to such other address.

(b)  Formal notice of meeting need not be given to a Member if he or she executes a
waiver of notice, either before or after the meeting. The attendance of a Member at a meeting,
without protesting prior to the conclusion of the meeting the lack of notice of such meeting, shall
constitute a waiver of notice.

SECTION 8. — QUORUM OF MEMBERS

(8  The presence of at least a majority of the Voting Members shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business at any annual or special membership meeting,

(®) A majority of the Voting Members present at a meeting, whether or not a quorum
is present, may adjourn any membership meeting to another time and place. Notice of the time
and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent Members if the time and
place is announced at the meeting adjourned.

SECTION 9. - ACTION BY THE MEMBERS

(a) Each Voting Member shall be entitled to one vote on each matter properly submitted
to the Members for action at any meeting of the Members. The vote of a majority of the entire
Voting Membership at a duly convened meeting, provided a quorum is then present, shall be
the act of the Members. Pursuant to and in accordance with the Open Meetings Law, Voting
Members must be present or participate through video-conference in order to count for purposes
of quorum and voting,

SECTION 10. - PROPERTY RIGHTS OF MEMBERS

The Member shall not have any rights or interests in or to the property or assets of the
Corporation.



ARTICLE I1I - BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADVISORY DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. - POWER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors, which shall establish all
general policies governing its operations.

SECTION 2. - NUMBER, ELECTION AND TERM OF DIRECTORS AND ADVISORY
DIRECTORS.

(@)  Directors. The number of Directors shall be at least seven (7) and no more than
eleven (11), such Directors to be appointed from time to time by and serve at the pleasure of the
Voting Members, The Directors shall exercise all rights of Directors as described herein and in
the Certificate of Incorporation or any applicable resolution. The Directors shall include the
Mayor of the City of Glens Falls, the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the County, and
the Supervisor of the Town of Queensbury, each in an ex officio capacity. Pursuant to and in
accordance with Section 703(d) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, and subject to the
affirmative vote of the Directors in each case, the foregoing ex officio Directors may each
appoint a designee to serve as an alternate Director to serve in the place of said ex officio
Director. Any subsequent increase or decrease in the size of the Board of Directors will require
the approval of the Voting Members and the affirmative vote of the majority of the voting
Directors. As used in these By-laws, “the entire Board of Directors” means the total number of
Directors that the Corporation would have if there were no vacancies on the Board.

(i) Ex Officio Directors (or Designee) shall serve a term consistent with
the term of their elected office and shall not be subjcct to the term
limits otherwise set forth herein.

(ii) Directors shall serve staggered terms of four (4) years as set forth on the
schedule attached to these By-Laws, and to be determined at the time
of nomination by the Governance Committee and as voted upon by
the current Directors at the Annual Meeting,

(iif)Directors shall serve no more than eight (8) consecutive years. The
Governance Committee shall be responsible to stagger terms
accordingly to ensure continuity and nominations shall include
compliant term lengths.

(iv)The Governance Committee shall nominate one or more Members for
each vacancy on the Board of Directors from which the Voting
Members will elect a Member to fill such vacancy.

(®  Advisory Directors. Up to an additional thirteen (13) individuals can be
appointed by the Directors as non-voting Advisory Directors of the Corporation who shall serve
at the pleasure of the Directors and act in an advisory capacity only to the voting Directors. The
non-voting Advisory Directors shall hold that title merely in an advisory capacity to the voting
Directors. The designation of non-voting Advisory Directors does not create any rights for any
individual so designated to notice or other participation except at the request of the voting



Directors; provided however, said non-voting Directors shall enjoy the benefits of any
indemnification of directors as determined herein or as determined from time to time,

(c)  All Directors shall serve at the pleasure of the Voting Members.

(@  The President, as defined herein, may serve on the Board of Directors of the
Corporation; provided, however, in such event, shall not participate in determining the level of
compensation or reimbursement, or time and attendance rules for the position of President.

(¢) Al Directors (but not non-voting Advisory Directors) of the Board shall
participate in training approved by the State of New York regarding their legal, fiduciary,
financial and ethical responsibilities as Directors within one (1) year of appointment to the
Board. Thereafter, the Directors shall participate in such continuing training as may be required
to remain informed of best practices, regulatory and statutory changes relating to the effective
oversight of the management and financial activities of the Corporation and the adhere to the
highest standards of responsible governance.

§i) As soon as practicable and in compliance with Section 2825 of the Public
Authorities Law, the majority of the Directors shall be Independent Directors, as such term is
defined in paragraph (g) below.

(&)  Independence. For the purposes of these By-Laws, an Independent Director means
any person who:

@) is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, employed by the
Corporation or another corporate body having the same ownership and control of the
Corporation in an executive capacity;

(i)  is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, employed by an entity
that received remuneration valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars (815,000.00) for
goods and services provided to the Corporation or received any other form of financial
assistance valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) from the Corporation;

(iif) isnotarelative of an executive officer or employee in an executive position
of the Corporation or another corporate body having the same ownership and control

of the Corporation; and

(iv)  is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, a lobbyist registered
under a state or local law and paid by a client to influence the management decisions,
contract awards, rate determinations or any other similar actions of the Corporation or
another corporate body having the same ownership and control of the Corporation.,

(W)  Board Offices. A Chaitperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary shall
be elected from among the Directors of the Board (exclusive of the ex officio Directors) at the
organizational meeting and subsequent annual meetings of the Board of Directors. The term of



office for the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary shall extend for two (2)
years after his or her election and until a successor is elected, unless that Director’s term on the
Board is earlier terminated by operation of the term limits imposed in Article III Section 2(a)(i-
iit) above.

The Chairperson, Vice-Chaitperson, Treasurer and Secretary may serve consecutive terms.

(i) CHAIR. The chair shall preside at all meeting of the Board of Directors. He or she
shall have the general powers and duties which usually pertain to his or her office.

(if) VICE CHAIR. The Vice Chair shall, in the absence of or at the request of the
Chair, perform the duties and exercise the power of the Chair.

(iii) SECRETARY. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to supervise the preparation of
the minutes of all meetings of the Members, the Board of Directors and its committees, and
supervising the giving of all notices required to be given by the Corporation. The Secretary shall
oversee the keeping of a current list of the Members, Directors and Officers and their residence
addresses and the preparation and maintenance of the books and records of the Corporation.

(iv) TREASURER. It shall be the duty of the Treasurer to oversee the Chief Financial
Officer and the financial affairs of the Corporation. The Treasurer shall cause a financial report
to be provided at each regular meeting of the Board of Directors, and shall oversee the
preparation of the annual report of the Cotporation and the filing of all required tax returns and

other regulatory reports.
SECTION 3. - RESIGNATIONS AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.

(@  Any Director of the Corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice
to the other Directors or to the Chairman or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at
the time specified therein or, if no time is specified, then on delivery. Acceptance of the
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

(b)  Any Director may be removed from the Board with or without cause by the
Members,

SECTION 4. - NEWLY CREATED DIRECTORSHIPS AND VACANCIES.

Newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the number of Directors shall
be filled as described in the resolution of the Voting Members approving such increase. Newly
created directorships resulting from any vacancies occurring for any reason shall be filled by the
Voting Members. In each case, such appointments shall be made as soon as practicable but in no
event later than sixty (60) days after the increase or vacancy occurs. A Director appointed to fill
a vacancy caused by resignation, death, disability or removal shall hold office for the unexpired
term of his or her predecessor in office and until a successor is appointed and takes office.



SECTION 5. - ANNUAL MEETING.

The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be within 6 months after the end of
the fiscal year at a convenient time and location to be determined by the Board of Directors.
Written notice of the annual meeting shall be mailed or delivered to each Director of the
Corporation prior to the meeting,

SECTION 6. - ANNUAL REPORT.

A Director designated by the Voting Members or the President and the Chief Financial
Officer shall present at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors a copy of the annual report
described in Article II, Section 4 above.

SECTION 7. - SPECIAL MEETINGS AND NOTICE.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, a majotity of Directors or by the President or any other officer of the
Corporation. Written notice shall be mailed or delivered to each Director of the Corporation
prior to the meeting. Said notice shall state the purposes, time and place of the special meeting
and that no business other than that specified in the notice may be transacted; provided, however,
if by unanimous consent all of the Directors present at such meeting elect to transact business not
previously described in the aforementioned notice, then the Directors may transact such other
business.

SECTION 8. - WAIVERS OF NOTICE.

Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who submits a signed waiver of
notice whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior
thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to him or her.

SECTION 9. - PLACE OF MEETINGS.

The Board of Directors may hold its meetings at such place or places as the Directors
may from time to time by resolution determine.

SECTION 10. — OPEN MEETINGS

The Corporation is subject to Open Meetings Law, the Corporation shall comply with the
Open Meetings Law of the State of New York, as set forth within Article 7 of the Public Officers
Law.
SECTION 11. - FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The Corporation is subject to Freedom of Information Law, the Corporation shall comply

with the Freedom of Information Law of the State of New York, as set forth within Article 6 of
the Public Officers Law.



SECTION 12. — PUBLIC AUTHORITIES ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

The Corporation is subject to the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005, as
amended by Chapter 506 of the Laws of 2009 (collectively, the “PAAA”) and shall comply with
the PAAA, as set forth within the New York State Public Authorities Law.

SECTION 13. — STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT

Upon the determination of the Board of Directors to do business within the State of New
York, the Corporation shall comply with the State Environmental Quality Review Act, as set
forth within Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law.

SECTION 14. - QUORUM AND ADJOURNED MEETINGS.

(@ A majority of the entire Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at meetings of the Board. When a quorum is once present to organize a
meeting, it shall not be broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any Director(s).

(b) A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may
adjourn any Board meeting to another time and place. If a quorum is present at the adjourned
meeting, any business may be transacted that might have been transacted on the original date of
the meeting. Notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to all Directors.

SECTION 15. - ACTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Any corporate action to be taken by the Board of Directors means action at a meeting of
the Board. Each Director shall have one vote regarding any corporate action to be taken by the
Board. The vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors at a duly convened meeting at
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. All references to actions of
the Board of Directors herein and in the Certificate of Incorporation shall mean the affirmative
vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors at a duly convened meeting at which a quorum
is present. Pursuant to and in accordance with the Open Meetings Law, Directors must be present
or participate through video-conference in order to count for purposes of quorum and voting.

SECTION 16, - ORGANIZATION.

At each meeting of the Board of Directors, the Chairperson, or, in his or her absence, the
Vice-Chairperson shall preside. The Secretary, or, in his or her absence, a person chosen by a
majority of the Directors present, shall keep complete and accurate minutes of the meeting.
SECTION 17. - ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS.

Attendance at each meeting of the Board shall be recorded by the Secretary or the
designated Director in the minutes thereof.



SECTION 18. - COMPENSATION.

The Directors shall serve in their capacity as Directors of the Corporation without
compensation. All Directors may be reimbursed for reasonsble expenses incurred in the
performance of corporate duties.

SECTION 19. - ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT,

The Audit Committee shall present to the Board upon its completion, the annual
independent audit report performed in accordance with the requirements of the PAAA and
generally accepted government auditing standards certified by a firm of independent public
accountants. The certified independent public accounting firm that performs the annual
independent audit shall timely report to the Audit Committee the following:

()] the assets and liabilities, including the status of reserve, depreciation, special or
other funds including the receipts and payments of such funds, of the Corporation as of the end
of the fiscal year;

(i)  the principal changes in assets and lisbilities, including trust funds, during said
fiscal period;

(iii)  the revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted, to
particular purposes during said fiscal period;

(iv)  the expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general and restricted
purposes, during said fiscal period; and

(v)  a schedule of the bonds and notes of the Corporation outstanding during said
fiscal period, including all refinancings, calls, refundings, defeasements, and interest rate
exchange or other such agreements, and for any debt issued during the fiscal period, together
with a statement of the amounts redeemed and incurred during such fiscal period as a part of a
schedule of debt issuance that include the date of issuance, term, amount, interest rate, means of
repayment and cost of issuance.

Furthermore, the certified independent public accounting firm that petforms the annusl
independent audit shall timely report to the Audit Committee the following:

@) all critical accounting policies and practices to be used:

(i)  all alternative treatments of financial information within generally accepted
accounting principals that have been discussed with the management of the Corporation,
ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment preferred
by the certified independent public accounting firm;

(iii)  other material written communications between the certified independent public
accounting firm and the management of the Corporation, such as the management letter along



with management’s response or plan of corrective action, material corrections identified or
schedule of unadjusted differences, where applicable.

SECTION 20. - PROPERTY RIGHTS.

No Director of the corporation shall, by reason of that position, have any rights to or
interest in the property or assets of the Corporation.

ARTICLE IV - COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. - STANDING COMMITTEES.

(a)  The Standing Committees of the Board shall be as described in subparagraph (b)
below. Except as otherwise provided by these By-Laws, each Standing Committee shall consist
of at least three Directors. No Standing Committee shall have authority as to the following
matters:;

@) The submission to the Voting Members of any action requiring its
approval;

(i)  The filling of vacancies on the Board of Directors or any committee;

(ii) The amendment or repeal of these By-Laws or the adoption of new By-
Laws; or

(iv) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by its
terms is not so amendable or repealable.

(b)  Until changed by amendment of these By-Laws, the Corporation shall have the
following Committees:

Audit and Finance Committee. There shall be an Audit and Finance Committee consisting
entirely of Independent members, who shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the
Directors of the Corporation at each annual meeting of the Board and shall serve until the next
annual meeting, To the extent practicable, members of the Audit and Finance Committee should
be familiar with corporate financial and accounting practices. The Audit and Finance
Committee shall recommend to the Board the hiring of a certified independent accounting firm in
compliance with the PAAA to conduct the annual independent audit, establish the compensation
to be paid to the accounting firm and provide direct oversight of the performance of the annual
independent audit. The Audit and Finance Committee shall have the responsibility to review
proposals for the issuance of debt by the Corporation and its subsidiaries, if any, and make
recommendations.
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Governance Committee. There shall be a Governance Committee consisting entirely of
Independent members, who shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the Directors of
the Corporation at each annual meeting of the Directors and shall serve until the next anmual
meeting. The Governance Committee shall keep the Board informed of current best governance
practices, review corporate governance trends, update the Corporation’s corporate governance
principles, advise the Members and Directors on the skills and experience required of potential
Directors, conduct potential Director searches and nominate Director candidates, and nominate
officers and committee members, The Governance Committee shall provide to the Voting
Members the name of one or more Members that the Committee is nominating to fill each
vacancy on the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. - SPECIAL COMMITTEES.

The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board of
Directors, may create Special Committees, which shall have only the powers specifically
delegated to them and shall in no case have powers which are not authorized for Standing
Committees. The members of Special Committees shall be appointed by a majority of the votes
cast by the Directors of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. - MEETINGS.

Meetings of committees shall be held at such times and places as shall be fixed by the
respective committee chairpersons, or by vote of a majority of all of the members of the
committee. Written notice shall be mailed (via regular mail or electronic mail) or delivered to all
members of the committee prior to each meeting, Written minutes of the proceedings shall be
kept at all committee meetings and shall be submitted at the next meeting of the Board. The
President and Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or their respective
designees, may attend all committee meetings, but will not possess any voting rights unless
otherwise granted by said committees.

SECTION 4. - QUORUM,.

A majority of the entire membership of a committee shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. As used in these By-laws, “the entire membership of a committee”
means the total number of members the committee would have if there were no vacancies on the
committee.

SECTION 5. - MANNER OF ACTING.

The vote of a majority of the entire membership of a committee at a duly convened
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee. Pursuant to and in
accordance with the Open Meetings Law, committee members must be present or participate
through video-conference in order to count for purposes of quorum and voting,
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ARTICLE V - CORPORATE OFFICERS

SECTION 1. —-PRESIDENT; CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER; ACTING
SECRETARY; OTHER OFFICERS.

The Corporation may have a President, a Chief Financial Officer, a Vice President,
Acting Secretary and other officers and assistant officers as the Board of Directors may
determine. The offices of President and Acting Secretary shall not be held by the same person.
The officers shall have such duties as may be prescribed by these By-Laws and the Board of
Directors. Such Officers shall be full-time employees of the Corporation and shall carry out the
purposes of the Corporation. Such employees shall receive such compensation as may be
determined by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. - TERMS OF OFFICERS.

The officers shall be appointed by the Directors at its annual meeting. Unless a shorter
term is provided in the resolution of the Board appointing such officer, the term of office of each
officer shall extend for one year after his or her appointment and until a successor is appointed
and qualified. Officers shall be eligible to serve an unlimited number of consecutive one 48]
years terms.

SECTION 3. - ADDITIONAL OFFICERS.

Additional officers may be appointed for such period, have such authority and perform
such duties, either in an administrative or subordinate capacity, as the Board of Directors may
from time to time determine.

SECTION 4, - REMOVAL OF OFFICERS.

Any officer may be removed by majority vote of the Directors, with or without cause, at
any time, provided there is a quorum of not less than a majority of the entire Board of Directors
present at the meeting at which such action is taken.

SECTION 5. - RESIGNATION,

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the
President or the Secretary; provided, however, the President must provide written notice of its
intent to resign to the Board of Directors and the Secretary must provide written notice of its
intent to resign to the Chairperson or the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take
effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time is specified, then on delivery. Acceptance of
the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

SECTION 6. - VACANCIES.
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A vacancy in any office of the Corporation shall be filled by the majority vote of the
entire Board of Directors.

SECTION 7. —PRESIDENT.

The Board of Directors shall appoint the President by resolution. The President shall
report to the Chair and generally supervise all affairs of the Corporation including officers and
employees. The President shall be the chief contracting officer of the Corporation, and shall
perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board of
Directors.

SECTION 8. — ACTING SECRETARY.

It shall be the duty of the Acting Secretary to supervise the preparation of minutes of all
meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors and its committees, the giving of all notices
required to be given by the Corporation, and the keeping of a current list of the Members of the
Corporation, Directors and officers and their residence addresses. The Acting Secretary shall be
responsible for supervising the preparation and maintenance of the books and records of the
Corporation. The Acting Secretary shall report to the President and attend to such
correspondence as may be assigned to him or her and perform all the duties customarily incidental
to that office and such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors
or the President.

SECTION 9. —-CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

The Board of Directors shall appoint the Chief Financial Officer by resolution. It shall be
the duty of the Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, with oversight by the Treasurer, to
oversee the financial affairs of the Corporation, report at each regular meeting of the Board of
Directors, and participate in preparing the annual report of the Corporation and the filing of all
required tax returns and other regulatory reports. The Chief Financial Officer shall report to the
President and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of
Directors, the Treasurer or the President.

SECTION 10. —VICE PRESIDENT

The Vice President shall serve as president in the event of inability of the President to serve
as determined by the Board of Directors, and until a successor President is appointed, and shall have
such other powers and duties as may be directed by the President.

ARTICLE VI- STAFF
The Corporation may have other staff as the Board of Directors may determine. Such

staff shall report to the President and have the titles, duties, responsibilities, compensation and
benefits as authorized by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII - CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS AND BANK ACCOUNTS

SECTION 1. - EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS.
13



The Board of Directors may on its own, except as these By-Laws otherwise provide, or
may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, employee or employees, in the name of
and on behalf of the Corporation, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument,
and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; but, unless so
authorized by the Board of Directors, or expressly authorized by these By-Laws, no officer,
agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or
engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniarily in any amount for any
purpose.

SECTION 2. - LOANS.

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation unless the amounts and terms
are specifically authorized by the Board of Directors. Provided, however, in the event the Board
of Directors establish a Loan Review Committee, the Committee may approve loans in
accordance with established State or Federal loan program requirements and with loan amount
limits as determined by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. - CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.

All checks, drafts and other orders for the payment of money out of the funds of the
Corporation, and all notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation, must be signed
on behalf of the Corporation by two of the following: the President, Treasurer; the Chairperson
or the Vice Chair of the Board.

SECTION 4. - DEPOSITS.

Al] funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time
to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the
Treasurer may recommend and the Board of Directors approves.

SECTION 5. - INVESTMENTS.

The Board of Directors may authorize the Corporation to contract with an investment
advisor and custodian to manage its investments in accordance with an investment policy
established by the Board.

ARTICLE VIII - GENERAL

SECTION 1. - SEAL.

The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year of
its organization, and the words “Corporate Seal, New York.” The seal may be used by causing it
ot a facsimiie thereof to be impressed or affixed or otherwise reproduced.

SECTION 2, - BOOKS AND RECORDS.
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There shall be kept by the Corporation (1) correct and complete books and records of
account, (2) minutes and statements of written action by the Members, (3) minutes of the
proceedings of the Board of Directors and its committees, (4) a current list of the Members,
Directors and officers of the Corporation and their residence addresses, (5) a copy of the
Certificate of Incorporation, and (6) a copy of these By-Laws. The foregoing items shall be
subject to inspection and/or audit at any time by or at the direction of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. - INDEMNIFICATION.
The Corporation shall indemnify each Member, each Director, each officer, and, to the
extent authorized by the Board of Directors, each other person authorized to act for the

Corporation or on its behalf, to the full extent to which indemnification is permitted under the
Not-For-Profit Corporation Law.

SECTION 4. - INTERESTED DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS.

The Board of Directors may adopt a policy regarding conflicts of interest which shall
apply to all directors and officers.

SECTION 5. - LOANS TO MEMBERS AND OFFICERS.

The Corporation, either directly or indirectly, including through any subsidiary, is
prohibited from extending or maintaining credit, arranging for the extension of credit or renewing
any extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to or for any Member, Director, or Officer,
or to any other company, corporation, firm, association or other entity in which one or more of

the Members, Directors or Officers of the Corporation are members, director or officers or hold
a substantial financial interest.

ARTICLE IX - FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of January of each
calendar year and end on the last day of December.

ARTICLE X - RULES OF ORDER AND BYLAW CHANGES
SECTION 1. - RULES OF ORDER.

Meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors and its committees shall be governed
by Robert's Rules of Order, except in cases otherwise provided for by these By-Laws.

SECTION 2. - BY-LAW CHANGES.
These By-Laws may be amended, repealed or adopted only by a majority of the Directors

of the Corporation, or a majority of the Voting Members, whose actions at all times shall
supersede actions by the Directors.
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Policies of EDC Warren County

1. Certification of No Conflict of Interest
2.Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties and Responsibilities
3.Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Annual
Report Certification

4.Professionals Retained and Approved Relationships
5.Compensation/Reimbursement and Attendance

6.Code of Ethics

7.Whistleblower Policy

8.Investment Policy

9/Travel Policy

10.Disposition of Property Guidelines

11.Procurement Policy

12.Defense and Indemnification Policy

13.Bill Payment Process

14.Discretionary Policy

15.Record Retention

16.Capitalization

17.Conflict of Interest

18.Sexual Harassment Policy

Sexual Harassment Complaint Form

19. Assessment of Effectiveness of Internal Financial Control (New)

Policies 1-18 re affirmed and adoption of new policy
No 19. March 20, 2020



EDC WARREN COUNTY
Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls Policy

New Policy Adopted No.17 March 20, 2020
1. BACKGROUND:

Section 2800(1) () (9) and Section 2800(2) (a) (8) of Public Authorities Law and pursuant to NYS Public
Authority Office recommended practice require all public authorities to complete an annual assessment of
the effectiveness of their internal control structures and procedures.

2. INTENT:

The purpose of the EDC Warren County (EDC) system of internal control shall be to:

a) Promote effective and efficient operations so as to help the EDC in carrying out its mission,

b) Provide reasonable assurance that the EDC’s assets are safeguarded against inappropriate or unauthorized
use.

c) Promote the accuracy and reliability of accounting data and financial reporting to ensure that transactions
are executed in accordance with the EDC Board’s authorization and that they are recorded properly in
accounting records.

d) Encourage adherence to the EDC Board’s policies and procedures for conducting programs and
operations.

€) Ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

This system of internal control includes performing an annual assessment to identify potential weaknesses in
policies or procedures and to implement corrective actions.

This assessment shall identify significant weaknesses in controls, recognize emerging or inherent risks, and
enable carly detection of existing or potential problems. If an internal control system is working effectively,
the EDC Board will have a reasonable indication of the reliability of its operating practices and the accuracy
of the information it uses to measure its activities and performance. Any deficiencies identified as a result of
the assessment shall be addressed by the EDC Board.

3. EDC’S INTERNAL CONTROLS ASSESSMENT PLAN:

A, Define the EDC’s Primary Functions:

1. Annually review the mission of the EDC and verify that its primary operating responsibilities, operations
and functions will help fulfill its mission.

2. Annually evaluate the EDC’s written mission statement to ensure that it clearly defines the EDC’s
purpose.

3. Define the EDC’s objectives and ensure they are understood by EDC staff,

4. Review policies, procedures and guidelines to ensure that they guide EDC staff in the operations of the
EDC and provide methods and procedures to assess the effectiveness of those functions.



B. Determine Risks:

1. Assess the internal and external risk exposure and associated vulnerability of each function of the EDC
and assign a corresponding risk level (i.e., high, medium, or low).

2. If a risk is identified, the EDC Board shall determine how to best handle it by evaluating its significance,
likelihood, and because

3.Based on the assigned risk levels, the EDC Board shall determine how frequently it will review the
controls in place for each function.

C. Review Existing Internal Control Systems in Place:
1. The EDC Board and staff shall annually review and examine the policies and practices in place to ensure
that those policies and practices are effective in addressing the risks that are relevant to the operation.

D. Assess the Extent to Which the Internal Control System is Effective:

1. The assessment of internal controls should be a structured and monitored process to identify and to
report any weaknesses of the internal control structure to the EDC Board.

2. This process should determine if the existing control structure and procedures are adequate, to mitigate
risk, minimize ineffectiveness and deter opportunities that could lead to the misappropriation of assets.

3. The assessment should provide the EDC Board with information as to whether the EDC’s policies and
operating practices were understood and were executed properly, and whether they are adequate to
protect the organization from waste, abuse, misconduct, or inefficiency.

4, This assessment shall be completed through a combination of inquiry and observation, a review of
documents and records and by replicating transactions to test the sufficiency of the control system.

E. Take Corrective Action:
1. When a weakness is identified, a corrective action plan should be developed, adopted by the EDC Board
and then monitored by the EDC Board to ensure that the weakness is addressed.

4. INTERNAL CONTROL CERTIFICATION:

A, Section 2800(2) (a) (8) of the Public Authorities Law:

1. To satisfy the requirement of Section 2800(2) (a) (8) of Public Authorities Law, the EDC shall
incorporate, either within its annual report or as a separate document, a statement explaining that the
authority has conducted a formal, documented process to assess the effectiveness of its internal control
structure and procedures, and indicate whether or not the internal controls are adequate.

2. This statement should eventually be posted to the EDC’s website.

3. The statement shall state the following or equivalent:

The EDC Board of Directors will document and assess the EDC Warren County Internal Financial
Control System for EDC's calendar year ending December 31,0f each year and shall undertake
determination as part of annual reporting requirements to NYS Authority Budget Office as to
adequacy of the Corporation’s internal controls- (i.e. adequate. No deficiencies or note
deficiencies/with recommendations for corrective action,

4, The EDC shall retain documentation to support the assessment of its internal controls.

5. If the EDC finds any deficiencies with the internal controls over its functions or operations, additional
documentation should be maintained to demonstrate that the EDC has adopted corrective action plans to
address these weaknesses.



6. This documentation should be made available upon request to the EDC’s independent auditor or to ABO
compliance review staff,

B. Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS):
1. As part of the PARIS Annual Report tab, the EDC will be required to indicate whether or not it has
prepared this assessment and will provide the URL link to the statement, if available.

Adopted March 20, 2020






Listing of any material changes In operations and programs during 2019

EDC did not experience any major changes or shifts in operations and programs during 2019.

In the fall 2019, EDC'’s CFO accepted a new position with an area school district as director of finance.
An interim financlal individual is currently in this position. A revised job description for this position is
being addressed by the EDC Board
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2019 EDC INVESTMENTS

EDC does not have any outstanding debt Including condult debt at any point during the
reperting period.












Materlal Litigation

There is no material pending litigation in which EDC Warren County Is involved as
a party during the year 2019



2(b) Misslon, current activities, most recent financlal reports, and
current year budget, and recent independent audit report Is listed
onthese two websites websites:

www.abo.ny.qov www.edcwe.org



3. Financial report was approved by the EDC Warren County Board

March 20, 2020 and certified by the CEO and Treasurer of EDCWamsn
County



CERTIFICATE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND THE TREASURER
OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

The undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer of the Economic Development
Carporation, a local development corporation organized pursuant to Section 1411 of the Not-For-
Profit Corporation Law of thé State of New York, hersby certify, pursuant to subdivision 3 of
Section 2800 of the Public Authorities Law, as follows:

The financial information provided within the Annua Report of the Economic
Development Corporation (the “Corporation™), dated as of March 11,2020(the “Annual Report™),
is accurate, correct, and does not contain any untrue statement of material fact. The Annua) Report
does not omit any material fact which, if omitted, would cause the reporf to ba misleading in light
of the circumstances under which the Teport and any such statements made therein are made. The
Annual Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of
operations of the Corporation as of, and for, the periods presents in said report.

The Annual Report is hereby approved,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Chief Executjve Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have executed this Certificate as of thig 20 dayof s gges 2020
/ (W4

Name:
Title: Chief ExsButi

N L]
Title: Treasurer






Medical Device Cluster
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EDC Attends Flomatic Expansion —
Pruyn’s Island Glens Falls June 21st

EDC Plan #: 3.1 Sites & Building
Inventory; 2.4 NYS & Federal Funding



Flomatic Expansion Project at Pruyn’s
Island Glens Falls Touted by ESD

EDC Plan #: 2.7 Workforce Dev; 2.10
Manufacturing Sector Support



French Paper Company Joining
Finch Paper Holdings

@ FRENCH PAPER Co. m:n—n—

EDC-Plan #: 2.7 Workforce Dev: 2.10 -
Manufacturing Sector Support



EDC North Country Affordable Housing
Next Steps: 1. Develop MOU with WC
Planning and 2. Seek Funding

EDC Plan #: 2.7 Workforce
Development & 1.4 Quality of Life

10



EDC Coordinated Visit April 16t to Lake
George with Senator Schumer to Update
asterwater Treatment Funding

|y

EDC Plan #: 1.4 Quality of Life & 2.4
NYS & Fed Funding



EDC Thanks Gov. Cuomo for $9.4 Million in

Additional Funding to Replace LG Sewer Plant
— Total NYS $14.9 Million of $24M Project

™

mQh e .. : ....-.H.%.r...””_.fh ua_ A : . e . ..... - .... © i W.

EDC Plan #: 1.4 Quality of Life & 2.4
NYS & Fed Funding



Thank You Note from Fund for Lake George
Chairman Jeff Killeen to EDC

Ed -

My great thanks to you personally, and EDC collectively, for your

leadership in helping to achieve the $9.4MM for the new LGV
wastewater treatment plant!

I also want to thank you for your participation in our FUND Council of
Business Advisors, and for the recognition in your e-newsletter to EDC
membership of Eric, Chris, John Kelly, The FUiiD and the Jefferson
Project as catalyst's for not only funding for the new treatment plant,
but for also providing a master science-to-solutions model for the

enduring protection of Lake George, and thus the economy of Warren
County.

My great thanks - Jeff

Jeffrey M. Killeen
Chairman - The FUND for Lake George



Two Approved Federal Opportunity
Zones in Warren County

EDC Plan #: 1.1 Marketing & Attraction
and 2.4 NYS & Fed Funding



EDC Northway Exits Site ID Project Now
Focused on Chester, Horicon

n.-. e i . ‘u.l o
rIImJ.._LL“."L....._.l,... ‘u

EDC Plan #: 1.1 Marketing/Attraction
and 3.1 Building & Sites Inventory



Queensbury Business Park
Total 9 Lots — 41 Acres Available

R _— b
SEDEPlen o1 Sites & Building -
Inventory; 2.4 NYS & Federal Funding



Adirondack Shindig with Tours of
Restored Union Church August 10th

EDC Plan #: 1.4 Quality of Life &
2.11Tourism Development



EDC Announces Annual Luncheon
Event and Program for May 30th

ﬂ

Vamen Comty, NY

R

2019 ANNUAL LUNCHEON

TOURISM'S ECONOMIC (MPACT ON

WARREN COUNTY & UPSTATE NEW YDRK

THURSDAY, MAY 30, 2018
Registration & Natworking:
Nam-~12pm

Lunchean & Program;
Z-130¢.m.

Great Escape Lodge
sgsﬁgﬂz«

ABVIeE smwmsebﬁemmu.:m.ﬂ..ﬁﬁu

Purchase tickets at WIW.sdewe.org
or calt $18.781.8007

IONY

General public
$75 or $560 for 10 tickens

SFOHSOR OPPORTUNITIES
uﬁﬂ.mgeaggmﬂgna
ggsﬁgg
Emaii Jennifor Switzer at
g

or cail 518 761.6007

SinFags Groat Excapy Resort

EDC Warran County - §12.7¢%.6007 - wurw.odewe.ors
m-ifgnnmo Mt Foller, Chair



EDC Participated as Panelist at 200
Bicentennial Canal Corp. Workforce
Forum at SUNY Adirondack

s

.._..r_r Fipis g

e e L

EDC Plan #: 2.7 Workforce Dev; 2.10
Manufacturing Sector Support



EDC Welcomes Lt. Gov Hochul to
Warren County

éﬂmﬂ ICE AGENDA

You're invited to a special presentation featuring
Lt. Governor Kathy Hochul

When: Tueaday, March 19, 2019 at 10:00am

Doors Open at 9:45am
Where: Crandall Public Library, 251 Glen Strest, Glens Falls, NY 12801

Topic: Tax Faimess for the Middle Class Campaign

RSVP: via email to Jeff.Quain@enec.ny.gov 14



Gov. Cuomo’s State of the State Address
January - Congrats to Retiring Sen. Little




ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
FINANCIAL REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2019
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7% MARVIN
AND COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBL IC ACOOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

A History of Shaping Futsres

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Economic Development Corporation

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financlal statements of Economic Development Corporation (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statsments of financial position as of December 31, 2019
and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional éxpenses and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibiiity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to éxpress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We
conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

material misstatement,

An audlt involves performing procedurss to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosures In
the financial statemnents. The procedures selected depend on the audlitor's judgment, including the

&ppropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of acoounting policies used and the reasohableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well ag evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial stetements,

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

I d bt o Ve b 11 British American Bivd, Latham, New York 12110- 1405 P 513.785.0134 | F:518-785-0299 WWW.marvinepa.com
o RO Sy 0 10 V1 Everts Ave. Queensbury. NY 12804 | P: 5187926895 | F: 518.792.6635 1.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matsriaj respects, the
financlal position of Economic Development Corporation as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the

principles generally accepted In the Unites States of America,
Other Reporting Required by Government Audfting Standards

HMavots asd Corspany, PL.

Quesensbury, NY
March 11, 2020



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSIT ION
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment
Land and land development
Furniture and equipment
Software and website design
Total
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net Property and Equipment

Other Assets
Land held for sale
Securlty deposits
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liablilties
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenus

Total Current Liabiiities

Net Assels
Without donor restrictions:
Undesignated
Board designated
Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 2018
$ 1081832 § 934,789
51,948 188,444
5,504 5,504

1,130,384 1,128,787

130,437 271,488
59,482 64,543
58,809 28,500

249,828 364,539
62,816 73,861

187,012 200,678
50,000 .

1,807 1,807
51,807 1,807

$ 1378203 § 1421220
“ *“

] 12419 ¢ 61,608

5,183 1,587

- 400
17,602 63,633
820,732 818,528

530,860 538,061
1,360,601 1,357,680

$ 1,378,203 $ 1,421,222
Eemcivereer e ————

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Changes In net assets without tonor restrictions:
Revenues and gains
Contract services $ 511,750 $ 566,750
Contributions - investors 78,200 82,420
In-kind contributions 12,836 19,562
Annual meeting and cther events 25,766 22,494
Intsrest income 882 1,010
Grants - 50,000
Other Income 647 2,168
Total revenues and gains without donor restrictions 831,180 744,404
Expenses
Economic Development 385,038 451,325
QGeneral and Administrative Expenses 171,171 183,675
Total Expenses §37,108 635,000
Loss on impairment 91,059 -
Increase In net assets without donor restrictions 3,012 108,404
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,357,588 1,248,185
Net Assets, End of Year $ 1,380,601 8§ 1,357,580
—— - [ = e SN

See accompanying notes to financlal statements.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Economic General and
Development Administrative Total

Functional Expenses

Advertising, marketing and promotion $ 17,087 § 3800 § 21,897
Depreclation and amortization 1,857 1,717 3,574
Dues - subscriptions 2,103 1,842 4,045
Development projects / studies 4,485 - 4,485
EDC events 30,505 - 30,505
Equipment lease and maintenance 1,765 1,628 3,303
Small equipment 5,116 4,721 9,838
Insurance 1,274 5,183 5,457
IT and telephone 12,074 11,145 23,219
Office expenses 4,038 3,727 7,765
Professional services - 20,819 28,819
Real estate taxes and Property maintenance 11,244 - 11,244
Rent 11,277 10,410 21,687
Salaries and wages 220,502 81,556 302,058
Pension expense 17,149 8,343 23,492
Empioyee benefits 6,338 2,343 8,681
Payroll taxes 18,215 6,737 24,952

Total expenses $ 365,938 $ 171,171 % 537,100

See accompanying notes to financlal statements.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Economic General and
Development Administrative Total

Functional Expenges
Advertising, marketing and promotion $ 12545 § 5061 § 17,6806

Depreciation and amortization 1.051 73 2,024
Dues - subscriptions 3a7 3,154 6,571
Developmenit projects / studies 106,673 - 108,673
EDC events 24,800 - 24,600
Equipment lease and maintenance 6,852 6,138 12,791
Small equipment 387 asse 745
Insurance 1.221 5,281 6,482
{T and telephone 4,802 4,248 8,850
Office expenses 3,303 3,048 8,351
Professional services 1,104 25,480 26,584
Real estats taxes and properly maintenance 8,411 - 8,411
Rent 11,277 10,410 21,687
Salaries and wages 217,847 97,818 315,865
Pension expense 18,428 8,278 26,704
Employee bansfits 10,468 4,703 15,172
Payroll taxes 18,240 8,844 27,884

Total expenses $ 451,325 § 183,675 & 635,000

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Cash Fiows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets from operating activitios 5 3012 § 108,404
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities

Depraciation and amortization 3,574 2,024
Loss on impairment 81,069 -
(Increase) decreass In assets: ‘
Accounts recelvable 136,486 (72,624)
Prepald expenses - 1,421
Increase {(decreass) In liabllities:
Accounts payable {48,277) 48,887
Accrued expenses 3,648 1,637
Deferred revenue {400) 400
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 188,110 $0,849
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment {40,967) (10,285)
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 147,143 80,564

Cash and Cesh Equivalents, Beginning of Year 834,789 854,225

Cash and Cagh Equivalents, End of Year $ 1,081,032 $ 934,789
e =

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 7.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities

ranging from $15,000 to $225,000 for small to mid-sized businesges within the geographic region
which Includes Warren, Washington, Franklin, Essex and Clinton Counties. EDC and LCLGRPB will
each facilltate loang depending on the geographic area the potentlal borrower operates in as well as
the nature of the loan,

Flnancial resources for the Fund wif come from a grant of up to $250,000 from Empire State
Development (ESD). The grant from ESD requires matching funds of up to $250,000, which will be
provided by a group of four (4) participating banks (Banks), sach providing loans representing 25%
of the required match. The loans from the Banks wilf be Issued to EDC, Financing provided by ESD
grants will not have to be repaid. However, as Payments are recelved, EDC wijj be required to re-
loan repayments attributable to ESD grant to new borrowers. Ag peyments are received from
borrowers, EDC will be required to make semi-annual payments to the Banks of principal and

EDC and LCLGRPB wi be required to participata in a loan loss reserve fund in an amount sufficient
to cover one year's principel and interest payments.

Basis of Accounting

EDC prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenyes are
recognized when earned and expenditures arg recognized when incurred.

Reclassificationg

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified 1o conform with the
presentation in the current-year financial statements.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of EDC are presented in accordance with ASU 2018-1 4, Not-for-Profit
Entitles (Topic 858): Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities,

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions, Accordingly, net assets of EDC and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met
either by the actions of EDC and/or the passags of time and net assets subject 1o donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanantly by EDC,

At December 31, 201g and 2018, EDC had no net assets with donor restrictions,
Change in Accounting Principle - Revenye Recognition

Contracts with Customers (Topic 806). This guidance provides a single comprehengive model for
accounting for revenue from contracts with customers. EDC adopted the standard, which is

retrospective to all periods presented.

EDC’s contract service revenue 's generated from contracts with various municipalities. EDC's
révenue contains performance obligations and revenue is recognized annually et a single point In
time when the performance obligations are performed. EDC's management has analyzed the
provisions of Topic 606 and have concluded that no changes in the timing of revenue recognition

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respactively, approximately 58% and 62% of
EDC's contract services revenue were derived from the service contract with Warren County.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property and Equipment

Estimated useful lives of related assets are as follows:

Furniture and equipment 3-8
Software and website design 4

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, depreciation and amortization expense was
$3.574 and $2,024, respactively,

Land and Land Development Cosis

Land and land development costs represent land and improvements held by EDC to further its
mission of developing industrial Parks and other real estate to attract new business and Industry to
Warren County. Land and land development costs are stated at cost.

Accounts Receivable and Aliowsnce for Uncoliectible Accounts

2019 £018
Recelivable from Jocat governments $ 40,150 3 123,400
Other recaivables 27,758 81,044
67,048 204,444
Less: Allowance for uncollectable aceounts 16,000 16,000
Total $ 51,048 ¢ 188,444

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, bad debt expense was $-0.,

10.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

1. NATURE OF ACTWVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimaies

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of essets and liabllities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Income Taxes

EDC Is exempt from federal Income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Accordingly, no provision for Income taxes has been Provided for in these financisl statements, in
eddition, EDC qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(B)(1)(a)(6) and
has been classified as an organization that is not g private foundation under Section 509(a).

The tax status of tax-exempt entities is an uncertain tax position, since events could potentiafty
occur that jeopardize tax-exempt status, EDC believes that income tax filing positions will be
susteined upon examination and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a
material adverse effect on EDC's financial condttion, resuits of operations or cash flows.
Accordingly, EDC has not recorded any liabilities, or refated accruals for Interest and penalties for
uncertain income tax positions at December 31, 2019,

Advertising, Marketing and Promotion

EDC expenses advertising, marketing and promotion costs as they are incurred. Thess costs for
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2018 were $21,897 and $17,808, respectively.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, EDC considers all highiy liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Future Accounting Standards

in February 2016, the Financtal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Issued ASU 2018-02, Leases

(Topic 842), which was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019.
Subsequently, in November 201 8 FASB Issued ASU 2019-10 extending the effective date to fiscal

years beginning after December 15, 2020. The standard requires a change in the way EDC will
account for its leases, eliminating operating leeses and requiring lease obligations to be recorded

deposits in a high quality financial institution,

11,



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

OPERATING LEASES

EDC entered Into a five year lease for the uge of office Space for the amount of $1,807 per month.
Payments made during 2018 and 2018 totalsd $21,887, respectively.

EDC has entered into a non-cancellable operating lsases for office aquipment expiring at verlous
times through 2023, Total equipment lease and related maintenance expense for these leases for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $3,393 and $12,791, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments under thege leases for the years
ending December 31:

2020 $ 24,332

2021 24,332

2022 18,748

2023 40
RETIREMENT PLAN

December 31, 2018 and 201 8, EDC made a contribution for eligible employees In the amount of

CONTRIBUTED SERVICES

EDC records various types of in-kind contributions. Contributed services are recognized at fair
value if the services recelved (a) create or enhance long-lived assets or {b) require specialized
skills, (c) are provided by individuale Possessing those skills, and (d) would typically need to ba
purchased if not provided by donation,

The following contributed services have been reflected in the financlal statements:

2019 2018
In-Kind Donation
Engineering/Consultant $ 3836 § 8,272
Marketing and promotional service 2,120 8,410
Computer services 4,000 4,000
Janitorial services donated by a related party 2,880 2,880
Total $ 12838 § 18,562
CONTINGENCIES

EDC's contracts for servicss are subject to audit by the funding sources at their discretion. Such
audits could result in claims against EDC for disaliowsd costs, EDC’s management befleves such
claims, if any, which may arlse, would be immaterial. As such, no provision for potential claims

has been made in the financial statements,

12,
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

OPTION AGREEMENT

EDC has an option agreement with Warren County for the purchase of four idertified separate [ots
located in Warren County at a price of $1 /600 per acre plus an option price of $36 per acre, The
option agresment expires on May 15, 2021,

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

general and administrative including depreciation, dues, IT and telephone, equipment lease and
maintenance, office éxpenses, rent, payroll and benefits are aflocated besed on roles and
responsibllities of various staff members,

BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

EDC's Board of Directors designated certain net assets be set aside for speoific purposes, At
December 31, 2018 and 2018 these designated funds had balances as foliows:

2019 2018
Operating Reserve $ 241,473 $ 241554
Property Carrying Costs 110,680 110,326
Queensbury Project Fund 137,433 137,025
Regional Loan Fund 50,308 50,156

Total Designated Cash and Cash Equivalents ¢ 539860 § 539,087

The designated funds were established for the following purposes:

Operating Reserve was established to cover cash-fiow shortfalls that may arise due to reliance on
& majority of EDC's funding through local municipalities.

Property Carrying Costs was established to cover the carrying costs of real property.

Queenebury Project Fund wag established to cover Projects specific to the Town of Queensbury
outside of the scope of the annual service contract,

Regional Loan Fund was established to cover EDC's portion of a loan loss reserve for the regional
loan fund,

AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY



10.

1.

12-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LQuiDiTy

In addition to financiel assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, EDC
operates with a budget and anticipates collecting sufficient févenue to cover general expenditures.
Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies the Sources and uses of EDC's cash and
shows positive cash generated by operations for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

as board designated net assets in Note 8. In the event the need arises to utllize the board
designated funds for llquidity purposes, the reserves could be drawn upon through board
resolution.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the following tables show the total financial assets held by the
EDC and the amount of those financlal asssts that could readily be made avallable within one year
of the statement of financial position date to meet general expenditures.

Financlal assets at years end:

2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10819832 g 834,789
Accounts receivable, net 51,848 188,444
Total financlal assets at year-end $ 1,133,880 $ 1,123,233

2019
Cash and cash equivalents § 1081932 3 934,780
Accounts receivabls, net 51,848 188,444

Less: Amounts set aside for board designations (539,860) (638,061)
Total financial assets avaliable at year-end $ 504011 3§ 584,172

LAND HELD FOR SALE

14,
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A History of Shaping Fusures

Board of Directors
Economic Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standard's,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financlal statements of the Economic
Development Corporation (a nonprofit organization) which cornprise the statement of financial position
as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of &otivities, functional expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financiaj statements, and have issued our report

thereon dated March 11, 2020,
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of g control does not allow
management or employees, in the narmal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and comsct, Mmisstatements on a timely besils. A material waakness is a deficlency, or a
combination of deficiencles, in interna) control, such thet there is a reasonable possibility that a material

¢ Nl Tt Brkish Amarican Blvd, Latham, New York 121 10-1405 | P:518-785-0134 | F:518-785.0209 www.marvincpa.com
L 111 Everts Ave. Queensbury, NY 12804 | P:518-792-6595 | £: 5187006835 15,



Compliance and Other Mattars

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the Scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal controf or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with GovemmentAudithg Standards in considering the entity's internaf control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mavotn and Company, PL.

Queensbury, NY
March 11, 2020
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